
Cabinet 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Cabinet to be held as follows for the 
transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Tuesday, 22 January 2019

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for absence 

2  Declarations of interest 

3  Minutes of the previous meeting 

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on the 8 January 2019.

(Pages 1 - 2)

4  Adoption of the Greenspace Strategy Supplementary Planning 
Document (30 minutes) 

Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable Development 
Lead Member for Environment and Community Safety.

(Pages 3 - 8)

5  Admissions Consultation - Determination of Arrangements (30 
minutes) 

Deputy City Mayor/Lead Member Children’s Services

(Pages 9 - 40)

6  Any other urgent business 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 0161 793 3318
Karen Berry Principal Democratic Services Officer E-Mail: karen.berry@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1

CABINET

8 JANUARY 2019

Meeting commenced: 10.00 a.m.
“                  finished: 10.20 a.m.

PRESENT

Paula Boshell                     Statutory Deputy City Mayor (In the Chair)
John Merry CBE                 Deputy City Mayor

LEAD MEMBERS:
Bill Hinds                            Finance and Support Services
David Lancaster, MBE       Environment and Community Safety
John Ferguson                   Workforce and Industrial Relations
Gina Reynolds                    Adult Services, Health and Wellbeing
Derek Antrobus                  Planning and Sustainable Regeneration 

EXECUTIVE SUPPORT MEMBERS (AT THE INVITATION OF THE CITY MAYOR):
John Walsh                        Education and Learning

OFFICERS:
Jim Taylor                          Chief Executive
Debbie Brown                    Director of Service Reform
Miranda Carruthers-Watt   City Solicitor
Sam Betts                          Assistant Director of HR
Joanne Hardman               Chief Finance Officer
Jacquie Russell                  Assistant Director - Strategy & Change
Ben Dolan                          Director, Place
Gunjit Bandesha                  Interim Director Public Health
Janice Lowndes                 Assistant Director People & Communities
Clare Mayo                        Integrated Commissioning Manager
Karen Lucas                      Principal Democratic Services Advisor

INVITEES:
Mike Taylor                        Head of Industry Partnerships, Salford University 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Paul Dennett - City Mayor, 
Councillors Lisa Stone, Stephen Coen and Tracy Kelly, from officers Charlotte 
Ramsden.

  
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 13th November 2018, were approved as a 
correct record.

4.      MENTAL HEALTH ALL AGE INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING STRATEGY
 

Councillor Reynolds, Lead Member for Adult Services, Health and Wellbeing 
introduced this report and in doing so explained that this strategy is based on the 
principles of person-centred approaches. It aims to describe a further movement 
from treatment to prevention; with a fundamental shift in how we organise our mental 
health care system and workforce, underpinned by timely and supportive clinical 
services for those who need them.

There are eight key objectives outlined within the strategy.

The Mental Health Commissioning Strategy is underpinned by engagement work 
with people who have lived experience of mental health needs, carers, staff and 
communities, in addition to a mental health needs assessment developed by Salford 
Public Health. There is a balance of focus on the objectives set out in the 5 Year 
Forward View and the wider determinants of mental health. The strategy is an ‘all 
age’ plan, looking at mental health across the life course.

This strategy aims to encourage other organisations, partners and communities to 
develop their own responses to the key priorities outlined in the action plan, to 
ensure that the approaches are embedded throughout the wider systems in Salford.    

This strategy aligns with other Salford strategies such as the Suicide Prevention 
Strategy, the Dementia Strategy, Salford Carer’s Strategy and the Anti-Poverty 
Strategy.  

Councillor Hinds conveyed his support for the strategy.

In response to questions raised by Councillor Lancaster, Clare Mayo explained that 
the performance rates for Salford are overall particularly good and that generally in 
many areas of service provision Salford are viewed as trail blazers. Contracts are 
regularly reviewed and monitored, with views sought from service users as part of 
that process. Where there are concerns in service provision; work is being 
progressed to raise performance.

RESOLVED: THAT, the Statutory Deputy City Mayor in consultation with Cabinet 
approved the Mental Health All Age Integrated Commissioning Strategy.

5.    ANY OTHER BUSINESS.

      No items submitted.

Page 2



1

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO.

REPORT OF THE LEAD MEMBER FOR PLANNING AND SUSTAINABLE 
DEVELOPMENT AND THE LEAD MEMBER FOR ENVIRONMENT AND 

COMMUNITY SAFETY

TO CABINET

ON 22 JANUARY 2019

TITLE: Adoption of Salford Greenspace Strategy Supplementary Planning Document 

RECOMMENDATION:

It is recommended that the City Mayor:

I) Approve for adoption the revised Greenspace Strategy Supplementary Planning 
Document.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

1. The city council has undertaken a review of Salford Greenspace Strategy 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) which was adopted in 2006. 
Subject to approval by Council, the revised Greenspace Strategy SPD will be 
adopted by the city council, and be published accompanied by the Open 
Space Chapter of Salford Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP).

2. An initial scoping consultation on the intention to review the Greenspace 
Strategy SPD was undertaken in February / March 2015. This identified the 
need for a review and summarised the changes since the SPD was adopted. 
Informed by this, the Draft Greenspace Strategy SPD was prepared to align 
with the emerging policies of Salford’s Draft Local Plan. A separate document, 
the IDP Open Space chapter, provides details of the current sites that meet 
the local recreation standards and the proposals for refurbished and new 
facilities, including estimated costs. A full public consultation on the revised 
Draft Greenspace Strategy was undertaken between June and August 2017. 
The representations received during the public consultation and updated 
evidence, such as from the Salford Playing Pitch Strategy 2018, have 
contributed towards minor changes to the final document.

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



2

3. The SPD of itself does not create new council policy, it is an amended 
document to explain council policy contained in the Development Plan.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 

 Greenspace Strategy Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 2019
 Salford Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) Open Space Chapter 2019
 Consultation statement
 Determination statement on the need for a strategic environmental assessment
 Community impact assessment document
 Salford Playing Pitch Strategy and Action Plan 2018

KEY DECISION: YES
The city council adopted a Greenspace Strategy in 2006, which has successfully 
guided the policy approaches to greenspace to supplement saved policies of Salford 
Unitary Development Plan. The existing Greenspace Strategy will be replaced by a 
revised and updated document, which will become a material consideration for future 
development proposals affecting open spaces, by guiding the protection and 
enhancement in communities in all wards of the city. A separate document, the open 
space chapter of Salford’s Infrastructure Delivery Plan, identifies the specific sites 
that already meet the adopted local recreation standards, and those sites that are 
proposed to be enhanced when funding becomes available. 

ON FORWARD LOOK:       YES  

DETAILS:

1 BACKGROUND

1.1 The city council adopted the Greenspace Strategy SPD in July 2006 to 
supplement Salford’s Unitary Development Plan with additional recreation 
policies and guidance. The existing SPD has proved very successful at 
facilitating the protection and enhancement of greenspaces across Salford 
over the past twelve years. It has contributed towards significant investment in 
the types of facilities available and considerable improvement on access to the 
existing local recreation standards.

1.2 The revised Greenspace Strategy SPD will be formally adopted by the city 
council, following the public consultation which has now taken place. 

2 SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS SUBMITTED

2.1 The city council directly consulted 1,956 individuals and organisations 
registered on its planning consultee database, including all statutory 

Page 4



3

consultation bodies such as Sport England and Natural England, residents, 
community groups developers and landowners. A list of all those consulted is 
set out in the background consultation statement. Details of the consultation 
were published on the city council’s website which included an interactive map 
of the key open space sites. All ward members and neighbourhood managers 
were contacted separately and invited to one of four member briefing 
sessions, which were held between 14 and 21 June 2017 in advance of the 
public consultation period commencing. 

2.2 A total of forty-one representations were received during the public 
consultation period as detailed in the consultation statement. A wide range of 
comments were received from individuals and organisations with different 
interests and perspectives on green and open spaces. Stakeholders 
recognised what the Greenspace Strategy SPD has achieved but also 
highlighted the importance of reviewing the document, particularly with it 
coinciding with the production of the emerging Salford Draft Local Plan and 
Greater Manchester Spatial Framework. Specific changes were recommended 
for the content or context of individual policies, which has resulted in 
appropriate revisions.

2.3 The importance of protecting existing assets and facilities and the benefits that 
they provide was particularly prominent in the responses. Several respondents 
identified that the SPD should recognise the multi-functional benefits of green 
infrastructure including towards biodiversity, and health and well-being whilst 
ensuring access to a range of safe recreation sites for all ages. In due course 
the city council intends to produce a Green Infrastructure SPD for public 
consultation, which will have wider scope and provide additional policy and 
guidance to support relevant chapters of Salford Local Plan.

2.4 Several site and area specific issues were raised, which have been 
considered as part of the review of the SPD. The revised open space chapter 
considers new open spaces to fill gaps in provision, as well as providing new 
and improved facilities at existing sites. Some stakeholders recommended 
further consideration of sharing responsibility for the future management and 
maintenance of some open spaces, where practicable.

2.5 A number of respondents identified issues that are beyond the scope of this 
SPD that have or will be addressed by other documents particularly the 
emerging Salford Local Plan and Greater Manchester Spatial Framework. The 
key issues raised predominantly relate to the potential impact on open spaces 
from proposed housing allocations and the review of existing Green Belt 
boundaries.

3 KEY CHANGES FOLLOWING PUBLIC CONSULTATION

3.1 Responses received during the public consultation period have informed the 
revised Greenspace Strategy SPD. Minor changes have been made to the 
content of the SPD that can be summarised as:

Page 5



4

 Reflecting emerging recreation policies in Salford’s Revised Draft Local 
Plan (consultation draft, November 2018);

 Expanding the multi-functional benefits of open spaces with additional 
focus on their value towards art and cultural activities, and for wooded 
areas to moderate extreme summer temperatures;

 Further acknowledgement that land availability in specific areas limits 
the ability to improve access to different types of provision;

 Greenspace to be designed to maximise access to all members of the 
public, and considering opportunities to incorporate natural play;

 Expanding the guidance on improving connectivity of pedestrian and 
cycling routes; and

 Highlighting the contributions that individuals, local groups and sports 
clubs can make to open spaces.

3.2 The latest version of the open space chapter of the Infrastructure Delivery 
Plan will be published at the same time and then updated regularly. This has 
also been updated to reflect changes, in particular to the status of sites and 
recent enhancements to facilities which include:

 Details of Salford Greenspace Audit 2017-18 with results and analysis 
of overall open space in the city;

 Site based details, including priorities identified by the latest playing 
pitch strategy 2018;

 New Natural Greenspace at Cutacre Country Park, Little Woolden Moss 
(nearly 100ha), and Cleavley Nursery;

 New sports pitches and a wetland area (14ha) to the north of the Old 
Racecourse Playing Fields with new cycle and footpath routes; 

 Peel Park, East Salford becomes a District Park following significant 
Heritage Lottery funding; and

 Duncan Mathieson Playing Fields has been added as a proposed site 
for extensive sports pitch enhancements on the basis that significant 
funding will be required. 

3.3 In advance of the proposed approval of formal adoption by the City Mayor, the 
revised Greenspace Strategy SPD has been reported to:  

 Informal Briefing to the Lead Member for Planning and Sustainable 
Development and the Lead Member for Environment and Community 
Safety – 29 October 2018

 Growth and Prosperity Scrutiny Panel – 26 November 2018
 Cabinet Briefing – 27 November 2018
 Council (for noting) – 16 January 2019
 Briefing note prepared for members.

4 RECOMMENDATION

4.1 It is recommended that the City Mayor:

I) Approve for adoption the revised Greenspace Strategy Supplementary 
Planning Document.

Page 6



5

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 
 City of Salford Unitary Development Plan 2004 – 2016: Saved Policies
 City of Salford Revised Draft Local Plan

COMMUNITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS:

A Community Impact Assessment of the revised Greenspace Strategy has been 
reviewed following the public consultation to inform the final version of the SPD. 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: LOW

The SPD has been reviewed to reflect changes since it was adopted in 2006 
including updated demand evidence and emerging policies of Salford Revised Draft 
Local Plan.  

SOURCE OF FUNDING:

The costs associated with the revised Greenspace Strategy SPD are very limited in 
scale (associated with minimal printing of the document) and will be met from existing 
revenue budgets.

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Miranda Carruthers-Watt, City Solicitor (0161
793 3620)

The adoption of a Supplementary Planning Document is not included in the list of 
functions that are non-executive in the Functions and Responsibilities Regulations
2000, and so is an executive function. In accordance with procedures in Salford, this 
will be taken by the City Mayor sitting in Cabinet at a Cabinet Meeting. 

The Adoption of Development Plan Documents (the Local Plan, for example) is 
reserved to Full Council. These are the documents that must first go through an
Examination in Public (public inquiry) before being adopted.

The SPD of itself, does not create new Council policy. It is a document that 
supplements and explains existing Council policy contained in the Development Plan 
(the UDP, Local Plan (Core Strategy) and other Development Plan Documents). As 
such, it is entirely in line with the existing Policy Framework of the Council. 
Consideration has been given to whether this should be regarded as a key decision 
as in other cases a number of SPD’s have been approved by Lead Members. 

In this case, it is considered that this is a Key Decision as it is significant and will 
have an effect on more than two wards, as they apply across ward boundaries.

Page 7



6

Whist it is an Executive Function, the City Mayor, in accordance with his commitment 
to transparency takes the view that this important document should formally be noted 
by the Council before it is approved by the City Mayor as a Key Decision.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Martin Anglesey, Finance Officer (0161 
793 3248)

The adoption (proposal) of the Greenspace Strategy Supplementary Planning 
Document and Salford Infrastructure Delivery Plan Open Space Chapter provide 
guidance policy and as such, no specific financial implications are resulting from 
these at this time.

Funding for refurbishments highlighted within the Open Space Chapter is reliant upon 
securing external funding to deliver the proposals, particularly Section 106 
contributions and grant funding.  Financial implications related to specific projects will 
be assessed as part of the normal decision making process.

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: n/a

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: n/a

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: The review of the Greenspace Strategy 
SPD has been prepared in close liaison with colleagues across Environment and 
Community Safety Directorate, Regeneration, Public Health and Salford Community 
Leisure.

CONTACT OFFICERS: Steve Davey TEL NO: 0161 793 3762
Annie Surtees TEL NO: 0161 925 1153

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: ALL

Page 8



Part 1 - Open to the Public
ITEM NO.

___________________________________________________________________

REPORT OF THE STRATEGIC DIRECTOR, PEOPLE
___________________________________________________________________

TO 
Children’s Leadership Team on 10 January 2019

Lead Member on 10 January 2019
Cabinet on 22 January 2019

___________________________________________________________________

TITLE: Determination of School Admission Arrangements 2020/21
___________________________________________________________________

RECOMMENDATION: In accordance with the provisions of the Schools Standard and 
Framework Act 1998, it is recommended that:

1. The following proposed changes to Salford’s admission arrangements for the academic 
year 2020-21 are agreed for determination

a) To include ‘Children adopted outside of England’ as second highest priority within the 
oversubscription criteria for community and voluntary controlled primary and secondary 
schools. (appendix 1 and 2) 

2.   It be noted that there are no significant changes to the Co-ordinated Admissions Scheme for 
2020-21.

___________________________________________________________________

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

All admission authorities must determine their admission arrangements for 2020-2021 by 28 
February 2019. A statutory minimum six week consultation process took place between 12 
November 2018 and 24 December 2018 as required by the School Admissions Code (2014). 
The report summarises the responses to that consultation and recommends the determination of 
the admission arrangements
___________________________________________________________________

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/school-
admissions-code--2

KEY DECISION: YES 
___________________________________________________________________

DETAILS: 

1 Admission arrangements

1.1 Parents have the right to express a preference of school. Local authorities have a 
responsibility to co-ordinate applications for school places, ensuring that where possible, a Page 9

Agenda Item 5

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/school-admissions-code--2
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/school-admissions-code--2


parent’s highest preference of school is met. Parents who are refused a place have the right 
to appeal. 

1.2The oversubscription criteria for a school are used to allocate places if more applications are 
received than the number of places available.  Admission arrangements include the 
oversubscription criteria.

1.3Where changes are proposed to admission arrangements, all admission authorities must 
consult by 31 January on their admission arrangements that will apply for admission 
applications for the following academic year. Where the admission arrangements have not 
changed there is no requirement to consult, subject to the requirement that all admission 
authorities must consult on their admission arrangements at least once every 7 years, even 
if there have been no changes during that period.

1.4The local authority, as the admission authority, is responsible for setting admission 
arrangements and oversubscription criteria in community and voluntary controlled schools.  
There were proposed changes to these arrangements for the academic year 2020-21. 

1.5The local authority also publishes a co-ordinated admissions scheme which explains how 
the admissions process will be undertaken and how the local authority will communicate 
offers of places with neighbouring local authorities.  No significant changes to the co-
ordinated scheme were proposed. 

1.6A six week consultation took place between 12 November 2018 and 24 December 2019 as 
required by the School Admissions Code (2014) on the proposed changes to the school 
admission arrangements for Salford.

1.7The following bodies were consulted:
 All Community and VC Primary Schools
 All Community and VC Secondary Schools
 All Primary Academies
 All Secondary Academies 
 All VA Primary Schools
 All VA High Schools 
 Diocesan Boards
 Neighbouring Local Authorities
 Parents and carers

In addition, the proposed changes were published on the Council website together with an 
online response form.  The consultation was also publicised in the press and through the 
use of social networking media. Schools were advised to inform parents of the consultation 
in their usual communications with parents.

2. Responses to the consultation

Twenty-eight responses were received to the consultation as shown in figure 1.

Page 10



The majority of responses came from parents or carers, representing mostly pre-school 
or primary aged children as can be seen in figure 2.

Eight parental respondents were happy to support the proposed changes. The remaining 
responses addressed a number of issues, particularly the impact on local families and 
that adopted children should be treated the same as other children for school admission 
purposes.

 Impact on local families – five respondents stated that giving priority to children 
adopted from outside of England would mean that there would be less places 
available in a school for local children and two respondents stated similar issues 
for children with siblings in a school. There was concern that families with adopted 
children would apply for schools perceived as ‘excellent schools’ even if they did 
not live in the area and therefore this would displace children who lived near to 
these schools who would then have to attend schools further away and that were 
not perceived to be as good schools.

 Treat all children the same – seven respondents stated that adopted children 
should not be treated differently to other children and that all should be considered 
equally for school places.  Several respondents stated that as adopted children 
were in a stable placement there was no reason they should be given priority for a 
school place.

 Other issues – four respondents did not comment on the proposals.  One 
respondent stated that adopted children should be given a lower priority than 
those with siblings.

Amongst the parental responses there seemed to be a misunderstanding about the 
impact of adoption on a child.  Several respondents stated that an adopted child should 
not be given priority for a place as they will have been in a stable adoptive placement 
since a baby and therefore should be considered on other factors for a school place.  
This fails to recognise the ongoing impact of trauma throughout childhood experienced 
by adopted children due to their early experiences that led to their adoption. There was 
also a failure to recognise that not all children are adopted as babies, with many being 
adopted at an older age.  There was also the misconception that children in the adopted 
from outside of England category would be from overseas. This would not necessarily be 
the case as it would also include children adopted from other parts of the UK, namely 
Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland. These misconceptions did influence how these 
respondents answered the consultation questions, generally meaning that the 
respondents felt that the disadvantage experienced by other groups would be 
disproportionate compared to the advantage for adopted children and therefore they 
disagreed with the proposals. Page 11



Additionally, when taking into consideration the impact of children adopted from outside 
of England it seemed that respondents thought there would be quite a significant impact.  
The consultation papers did state that the number of children that would fall into this 
category would be very low. Whilst we do not know the exact numbers of children in 
Salford who are adopted from outside of England, we would expect it to be less than the 
number of children adopted from in England.  Department of Education figures show that 
the pupil premium plus funding for Post-LAC children (adopted in England children and 
those on special guardianship or child arrangements orders) for 2017-18 was provided 
for 230 pupils in Salford. This works out at approximately 2.4 pupils per school in Salford 
across all year groups.  As we expect numbers for adoptions from outside of England to 
be less, then the impact on any one school in any given year is likely to be very minimal.

The responses from schools and the Church of England Diocese were supportive of the 
proposed changes.

 

3. Determined changes – Admission Arrangements for community and voluntary 
controlled primary and secondary schools

Whilst responses showing concern (57%) for the proposals slightly outweighed those in 
favour (43%), nonetheless, given the misconceptions surrounding adopted children and 
the very low numbers of children expected to be eligible for this criterion, it is 
recommended that the proposed changes be accepted and published. 

Demand for school places is closely monitored by the School Organisation team who 
ensure sufficient capacity exists within the system to accommodate all children within a 
reasonable distance of their home address.  The impact of prioritising admission of 
adopted children from outside of England is likely to be minimal.  

It is recommended to accept the proposed changes and monitor the implementation of 
this new criterion for children adopted from outside of England.  The Department for 
Education are intending to legislate for these children to be statutory admitted as top 
priority along with other looked after and previously looked after children. It is likely that 
this legislation will be in place for the 2021-22 intake the following year.  If necessary 
further changes to admission arrangements will be considered and consulted on in future 
years.

4. There are no changes to the co-ordinated admissions scheme for 2020-21

5. Proposed timetable for decision making

Date Action
January /February 2019 Report to Leadership Team, 

Lead Member briefing
Cabinet
to approve changes

By 28 February 2019 Notify Secretary of State of determined 
arrangements

Determination notice in local press

Distribute details of determined arrangements to 
consultees

___________________________________________________________________
Page 12



KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  School Admissions
___________________________________________________________________

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: N/A see appendix 5
 
ASSESSMENT OF RISK: Low
___________________________________________________________________

SOURCE OF FUNDING:  None required
 ___________________________________________________________________

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Melinda Edwards, Solicitor, 0161 219 6286
___________________________________________________________________

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A
___________________________________________________________________

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A
___________________________________________________________________

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: N/A
___________________________________________________________________

CONTACT OFFICER: Helen Nicolle TEL. NO. 0161 778 0411
___________________________________________________________________

WARD(S) TO WHICH REPORT RELATE(S): All
___________________________________________________________________

Page 13



Appendix 1 – Primary Oversubscription Criteria

Oversubscription criteria - community and voluntary controlled primary 
schools

This admission policy applies to the following schools:

Beech Street Primary School
Boothstown Methodist Primary School
Brentnall Primary School
Bridgewater Primary School
Cadishead Primary School
Clarendon Road Primary School
Clifton Primary School
The Deans Primary School
Ellenbrook Primary School
Fiddlers Lane Primary School
The Friars Primary School
Grosvenor Road Primary School
Hilton Lane Primary School
Irlam Primary School
Irlam Endowed Primary School
James Brindley Primary School
Lark Hill Primary School
Lewis Street Primary School
Light Oaks Infant Primary School
Light Oaks Junior Primary School
Lower Kersal Primary School
Mesne Lea Primary School
Monton Green Primary School

Moorfield Primary School
Moorside Primary School
Mossfield Primary School
North Walkden Primary School
Peel Hall Primary School
Primrose Hill Primary School
River View Primary School
St Andrews CE Primary School, Eccles
St Andrews (Boothstown) CE Primary 
School
St Andrews Methodist Primary School
St Georges CE Primary School
St Johns CE Primary School
St Lukes CE Primary School
St Marys CE Primary School
St Pauls CE Primary School (Kersal)
St Pauls CE Primary School (Heathside 
Grove)
St Pauls Peel CE Primary School
Summerville Primary School
Wardley CE Primary School
Westwood Park Primary School
Wharton Primary School
Willow Tree Primary School

Where a school receives more applications than places available, the following 
oversubscription criteria will be applied once places have first been allocated to 
children who have an education, health and care plan which names the school. 

1. Looked after children and previously looked after children. This includes children 
who have ceased to be looked after because they were adopted or became subject to 
a child arrangements order or special guardianship order. (Parents/carers of all 
previously looked after children will need to provide a photocopy of the relevant order 
with the application form)

2. Children adopted from outside of England. Children who appear to the local 
authority to have been in state care outside of England and ceased to be in state care 
as a result of being adopted. (see note c)

3. Children in need as defined by the Children Act (1989), i.e. those who are unlikely to 
achieve or maintain or to have the opportunity of achieving or maintaining a 
reasonable standard of health or development or a child/children whose health or 
development would be further impaired without the provision of services by  the Local 
Authority. Confirmation of the child’s needs will be required from their social worker. 
(see note d) 

4. Brother or sister in attendance at the school (Reception – Year 5 only.  Year 6 are 
considered for in year applications only) at the date when the pupil is to be admitted.  
This includes stepchildren and foster children living with the same family at the same 
address.  Other children may be considered under the sibling criterion provided proof 

Page 14



is available to demonstrate that the children are permanently resident at the same 
address and part of the same family unit.   (The authority accepts that in some family 
units the children may not be natural brothers and/or sisters).

5. Children living nearest to the school.  
The distance will be measured in a straight line using LLPG (Local Land and Property 
Gazetteer) information to measure the distance between the address point (including 
flats) of the child’s home address and the centre of the school in miles. Those children 
whose home address is closest to the school will be those who get priority for places. 
(see note f)

Notes
a. Entrance to reception

No child can automatically transfer from a nursery to a reception class. Where a 
school is over-subscribed, places in the reception class must be allocated 
according to the published admission criteria, with children who have attended 
the nursery being considered on the same basis as those who have not.

b. Light Oaks Infant School and Light Oaks Junior School
Pupils who attend Light Oaks Infant School in Year 2 will automatically transfer 
to Light Oaks Junior School at Year 3.

c. Children adopted from outside of England
A child is regarded as having been in state care in a place outside of England if 
they were accommodated by a public authority, a religious organisation or any 
other provider of care whose sole purpose is to benefit society. Parents/carers of 
children adopted from outside of England will need to provide a photocopy of the 
relevant order or proof of the child’s adoption from care direct to the local 
authority with the application form.

d. Children in need
In Salford, children who would be eligible for this criterion are those who are at 
level three and have ongoing social worker involvement, and  all at level four on 
the ‘Thresholds of needs and response in Salford’ 
(www.salford.gov.uk/thresholds.htm).  For children resident in other local 
authorities, contact will be made with the child’s social worker to confirm that the 
child’s level of need falls within these boundaries of the Salford thresholds.  
Salford LA must have confirmation of an applicant’s level of need from an 
appropriate professional before they will be considered under this criterion. 

e. St John’s CE Primary School
As this school operates over a split site, for admissions to all year groups the 
distance measurement will be made to the centre of the school building on the 
Daisy Bank Avenue site.

f. Tie-breaker
Where there are more children in one particular criterion than the number of 
places available, places will be allocated to the children whose home address is 
nearest the school.  The distance will be measured in a straight line using the 
LLPG (Land and Property Gazetteer) information to measure the distance 
between the address point of the child’s home address and the centre of the 
school in miles.  Those children whose home address is closest to the school 
will be those who get priority for places.

In the event of a tie, where two or more pupils’ home address is the same 
distance from the preferred school and only one place is available, random 
allocation will be used. This will be carried out by an independent person.  

Page 15

http://www.salford.gov.uk/thresholds.htm


Eligible names will be placed in a hat.  One name will be drawn from the hat and 
the remaining place will be offered to that person.  This process for random 
allocation also applies to the waiting list where two or more pupils are eligible for 
one vacancy because they live the same distance from the preferred school.

g. Multiple births
If there is a situation where only one place is available and the next children to 
be offered are siblings of a multiple birth, all the siblings will be offered places.

h. The child’s home address
The child’s home address is considered to be the child’s parent/carer(s) place of 
residence, that is to say, where they are normally and regularly living.

If parents are separated and the child spends time at each parents’ address, the 
address which will be used for admission to schools is that of the main carer. 
The main carer is determined as the parent who is in receipt of child benefit.

If a child is resident with friends or relatives for reasons other than guardianship, 
the friend or relative’s address will not be considered.

We may ask to see between two and four forms of evidence of your home 
address (photocopies are acceptable) in addition to the child benefit information 
showing the address to which payments are made.  This may include, for 
example: 

 proof of where you are registered for council tax
 your television licence
 wage/ salary slip
 proof of your child tax credits.   

Any evidence you provide must show that the parent or main carer lives at this 
address.  We may seek evidence by other means if the parent/carer is unable to 
provide sufficient proof of their residence.

If your address changes temporarily (for example, if you go to live with a relative 
or there is another reason for temporary vacation of the permanent residence to 
which the child benefit document refers) you cannot use this temporary address 
for the purposes of your application.  

i. Temporary addresses
The Authority may at its discretion consider as genuine a child’s temporary 
address where, for example, the child is living with his/her parent/carer(s) in 
temporary accommodation due, for example, to their parent/carer(s) working 
commitments, whilst they are seeking a permanent address in the same area.

If the parent/carer(s) main address has changed temporarily, for example where 
a parent/carer resides with extended family during a period of sickness or takes 
up temporary accommodation due to building or renovation work, then the 
parent/carer(s) address remains that at which the parent/carer(s) was resident 
before the temporary residence began.

j. Change of address
Any permanent change in address must be notified in writing or by email to the 
Admissions Team as soon as possible.  It will not be possible to make any 
changes to the home address for allocation purposes after 15 March as school 
offers will be finalised.  However, please still inform the admissions team of 
changes of address after this date so that offer information can be sent to the 

Page 16



correct address.

Where a change of address occurs after the closing date and before 15 March, 
the local authority will consider a change of preferences to be on-time only 
where the change of address is over two miles from the previous address 
(measured from address point to address point in a straight line).  Where the 
change of address is under two miles any changes of preference will be 
considered as a late application. Any change of preferences resulting from a 
change of address after 15 March will be considered as a late application.

k. False information
If you give any fradulent or intentionally misleading information to obtain a 
school place (for example, if you give the incorrect home address), we may 
withdraw the offer and your child may lose their place.  

If you suspect that someone has given false information to get a school place 
please contact the admissions team.  

Please note that the Local Authority will take strong action and the place 
offered will be withdrawn, if any false or misleading information is given, 
including an address which is not the child’s home address as defined 
above.

l. Admission of children from overseas
All children of compulsory school age (five to 16 years) in the UK have a right of 
access to education. However, where a child is in the UK for a short period 
only, for example less than half a term, it may be reasonable to refuse 
admission to a school.

Children who hold full British Citizen passports (not British Dependent 
Territories or British Overseas passports), have a passport endorsed to show a 
right of abode in the UK or are European Economic Area nationals normally 
have unrestricted entry to the UK. An application for a school place will be 
accepted for such children even though they may not be resident in the UK at 
the time of application. The application may however be processed on the basis 
of the overseas address.

Other children from overseas do not generally have automatic right of entry to 
the UK. An application for a school place will not therefore be accepted until 
they are resident in the UK. Proof of residency such as an endorsed passport or 
entry visa will be required with the application. 

m. Waiting list policy
Children who are not offered a nursery or reception place for the September 
intakes at their preferred school will be placed on the school’s waiting list. The 
waiting list will be maintained only for the statutory period (until 31 December). 
Should any places become available they will be allocated in accordance with 
Salford Local Authority’s published admission criteria. 

As children are added to the waiting list, the list will be re-ranked in accordance 
with the published admission criteria.  This means that children can move both 
up and down the waiting list.

After 31 December, if a parent wishes their child to continue to be considered for 
a school place, they will need to reapply for a place using the procedure for in-
year admissions. Page 17



Looked after children, previously looked after children and children who come 
under the Fair Access Protocol will take precedence over those on the waiting 
list.

There are no waiting lists for in-year admissions.

n. Nursery classes only
No places will be allocated in nursery classes to children who have not reached 
the age of three by 1 September in the admission year.

The nursery admission criteria will be applied to Salford children initially and 
then, if places are still available, to children resident in other local authority 
areas.

Should a school decide to allocate full and part-time places in the nursery class 
the decision on how those places are allocated is the responsibility of the 
Governing Body. A head teacher however, should be able to justify to a parent 
the reason for the decision i.e. Full time places are given to the older pupils first.

Parent/carers will be disallowed from taking two part time places for their child, 
thus limiting the number of places available.

o. Right of appeal
If a child is refused a place at a preferred school, they will have the right of 
appeal for that school.  Parents must give their grounds of appeal in writing and 
will be given at least 20 school days to submit these to the local authority. 
Further information can be found on the local authority’s website 
(www.salford.gov.uk/primary-appeal)

p. Part time, deferred and delayed admission
The admission authority provides for the admission of all children in the 
September following their fourth birthday. However, where a child has been 
offered a place at a school the child’s parents/carers can defer the date their 
child is admitted to the school until later in the school year but not beyond the 
point at which they reach compulsory school age and not beyond the beginning 
of the final term of the school year for which it was made. Alternatively, where 
parents wish, children may attend part time until later in the school year but not 
beyond the point at which they reach compulsory school age. 

Parents wishing to take either of the above options should inform their allocated 
school as soon as a place is offered so that the appropriate arrangements can 
be made.

Parents may seek a place for their child outside of their normal age group, for 
example if the child is gifted and talented or has experienced problems such as 
ill health. Parents should contact the Headteacher of the school concerned in the 
first instance to discuss an application for admission outside of the normal age 
group.

In addition, parents of children born between 1 April and 31 August (summer 
born children) may choose not to send that child to school until the September 
following their fifth birthday and may request that they are admitted out of their 
normal age group – to reception rather than year 1 i.e. starting reception a year 
later than those in their age group. This request should be made to the school 
admissions team in writing giving reasons for the request.  This should be done 
at the time the child would usually be expected to apply for a reception place.  Page 18

http://www.salford.gov.uk/primary-appeal


The request will be considered in conjunction with the school and the parent, and 
the admission authority for the school will decide on whether the child should be 
offered delayed admission or not.  The decision, and the reasons for it, will be 
communicated to the parent in writing.  Where a child is offered a place at a 
school but not in the year group preferred there will be no right of appeal.

Page 19



Appendix 2 – Secondary Oversubscription Criteria

Oversubscription criteria - community and voluntary controlled 
Secondary Schools

This admission policy applies to the following schools:

Harrop Fold High School

Where a school receives more applications than places available, the following 
oversubscription criteria will be applied once places have first been allocated to 
children who have a statement of special education need or an education, health and 
care plan which names the school. 

1. Looked after children and previously looked after children. This includes children 
who have ceased to be looked after because they were adopted or became subject to 
a child arrangements order or special guardianship order. (Parent/carers of previously 
looked after children will need to provide a photocopy of the relevant order with the 
application form)

2. Children adopted from outside of England. Children who appear to the local 
authority to have been in state care outside of England and ceased to be in state care 
as a result of being adopted. (see note a)

3. Children in need as defined by the Children Act (1989), i.e. those who are unlikely to 
achieve or maintain or to have the opportunity of achieving or maintaining a 
reasonable standard of health or development or a child/children whose health or 
development would be further impaired without the provision of services by  the Local 
Authority. Confirmation of the child’s needs will be required from their social worker. 
(see note b) 

4. Brother or sister in attendance at the school (Year 7 –year 10 only.  Year 11 are 
considered for in year applications only) at the date when the pupil is to be admitted.  
This includes stepchildren and foster children living with the same family at the same 
address.  Other children may be considered under the sibling criterion provided proof 
is available to demonstrate that the children are permanently resident at the same 
address and part of the same family unit.   (The authority accepts that in some family 
units the children may not be natural brothers and/or sisters).

5. Children living nearest to the school.  
The distance will be measured in a straight line using LLPG (Local Land and Property 
Gazetteer) information to measure the distance between the address point (including 
flats) of the child’s home address and the centre of the school in miles. Those children 
whose home address is closest to the school will be those who get priority for places. 

Notes

a. Children adopted from outside of England
A child is regarded as having been in state care in a place outside of England if 
they were accommodated by a public authority, a religious organisation or any 
other provider of care whose sole purpose is to benefit society. Parents/carers 
of children adopted from outside of England will need to provide a photocopy of 
the relevant order or proof of the child’s adoption from care direct to the local 
authority with the application form.Page 20



b. Children in need
In Salford, children who would be eligible for this criterion are those who are at 
level three and have ongoing social worker involvement, and  all at level four on 
the ‘Thresholds of needs and response in Salford’ 
(www.salford.gov.uk/thresholds.htm).  For children resident in other local 
authorities, contact will be made with the child’s social worker to confirm that 
the child’s level of need falls within these boundaries of the Salford thresholds.  
Salford LA must have confirmation of an applicant’s level of need from an 
appropriate professional before they will be considered under this criterion. 

c. Tie-breaker
Where there are more children in one particular criterion than the number of 
places available, places will be allocated to the children whose home address is 
nearest the school.  The distance will be measured in a straight line using the 
LLPG (Land and Property Gazetteer) information to measure the distance 
between the address point of the child’s home address and the centre of the 
school in miles.  Those children whose home address is closest to the school 
will be those who get priority for places.

In the event of a tie, where two or more pupils’ home address is the same 
distance from the preferred school and only one place is available, random 
allocation will be used. This will be carried out by an independent person.  
Eligible names will be placed in a hat.  One name will be drawn from the hat 
and the remaining place will be offered to that person.  This process for random 
allocation also applies to the waiting list where two or more pupils are eligible 
for one vacancy because they live the same distance from the preferred school.

d. Multiple births
If there is a situation where only one place is available and the next children to 
be offered are siblings of a multiple birth, all the siblings will be offered places.

e. The child’s home address
The child’s home address is considered to be the child’s parent/carer(s) place 
of residence, that is to say, where they are normally and regularly living.

If parents are separated and the child spends time at each parents’ address, 
the address which will be used for admission to schools is that of the main 
carer. The main carer is determined as the parent who is in receipt of child 
benefit.

If a child is resident with friends or relatives for reasons other than 
guardianship, the friend or relative’s address will not be considered.

We may ask to see two to four forms of evidence of your home address 
(photocopies are acceptable) in addition to the child benefit information showing 
the address to which payments are made.  This may include, for example: 

 proof of where you are registered for council tax
 your television licence
 wage/ salary slip
 proof of your child tax credits.   

Any evidence you provide must show that the parent or main carer lives at this 
address.  We may seek evidence by other means if the parent/carer is unable 
to provide sufficient proof of their residence.

Page 21

http://www.salford.gov.uk/thresholds.htm


If your address changes temporarily (for example, if you go to live with a 
relative or there is another reason for temporary vacation of the permanent 
residence to which the child benefit document refers) you cannot use this 
temporary address for the purpose of your application.  

f. Temporary addresses
The Authority may at its discretion consider as genuine a child’s temporary 
address where, for example, the child is living with his/her parent/carer(s) in 
temporary accommodation due, for example, to their parent/carer(s) working 
commitments, whilst they are seeking a permanent address in the same area.

If the parent/carer(s) main address has changed temporarily, for example 
where a parent/carer resides with extended family during a period of sickness 
or takes up temporary accommodation due to building or renovation work, then 
the parent/carer(s) address remains that at which the parent/carer(s) was 
resident before the temporary residence began.

g. Change of address
Any permanent change in address must be notified in writing or by email to the 
Admissions Team as soon as possible.  It will not be possible to make any 
changes to the home address for allocation purposes after 1 February as 
school offers will be finalised.  However, please still inform the admissions team 
of changes of address after this date so that offer information can be sent to the 
correct address.

Where a change of address occurs after the closing date and before the 15 
January, the local authority will consider a change of preferences to be on-time 
only where the change of address is over two miles from the previous address 
(measured from address point to address point in a straight line).  Where the 
change of address is under two miles any changes of preference will be 
considered as a late application. Any change of preference resulting from a 
change of address after 15 January will be considered as a late application.

h. False information
If you give any fraudulent or intentionally misleading information to obtain a 
school place (for example, if you give the incorrect home address), we may 
withdraw the offer and your child may lose their place.  

If you suspect that someone has given false information to get a school place 
please contact the admissions team.  

Please note that the Local Authority will take strong action and the place 
offered will be withdrawn, if any false or misleading information is given, 
including an address which is not the child’s home address as defined 
above.

i. Admission of children from overseas
All children of compulsory school age (five to 16 years) in the UK have a right of 
access to education. However, where a child is in the UK for a short period 
only, for example less than half a term, it may be reasonable to refuse 
admission to a school.

Children who hold full British Citizen passports (not British Dependent 
Territories or British Overseas passports), have a passport endorsed to show a 
right of abode in the UK or are European Economic Area nationals normally 

Page 22



have unrestricted entry to the UK. An application for a school place will be 
accepted for such children even though they may not be resident in the UK at 
the time of application. The application may however be processed on the basis 
of the overseas address.

Other children from overseas do not generally have automatic right of entry to 
the UK. An application for a school place will not therefore be accepted until 
they are resident in the UK. Proof of residency such as an endorsed passport or 
entry visa will be required with the application. 

j. Waiting list policy
Children who are not offered a nursery or reception place for the September 
intakes at their preferred school will be placed on the school’s waiting list. The 
waiting list will be maintained only for the statutory period (until 31 December). 
Should any places become available they will be allocated in accordance with 
Salford Local Authority’s published admission criteria. 

After 31 December, if a parent wishes their child to continue to be considered 
for a school place, they will need to reapply for a place using the procedure for 
in-year admissions.

Children who come under the Fair Access Protocol will take precedence over 
those on the waiting list.

There are no waiting lists for in-year admissions.

k. Right of appeal
If a child is refused a place at a preferred school, they will have the right of 
appeal for that school.  Parents must give their grounds of appeal in writing and 
will be given at least 20 school days to submit these to the local authority. 
Further information can be found on the local authority’s website 
(www.salford.gov.uk/primary-appeal)

l. Education outside of usual age
Parents may seek a place for their child outside of their normal age group, for 
example if the child is gifted and talented or has experienced problems such as 
ill health. For year 6 to year 7 applications where a child is already taught 
outside of their usual age, parents should contact the admissions team in 
advance of making an application to discuss the process.  For in-year 
applications, or where the child is already attending the school, parents should 
contact the Headteacher of the school concerned in the first instance to discuss 
an application for admission outside of the normal age group.

The request will be considered in conjunction with the school and the parent, 
and the admission authority for the school will decide on whether the child 
should be offered delayed admission or not.  The decision, and the reasons for 
it, will be communicated to the parent in writing.  Where a child is offered a 
place at a school but not in the year group preferred there will be no right of 
appeal.

Page 23

http://www.salford.gov.uk/primary-appeal


  

Appendix 3 – Co-ordinated Admissions Scheme 2020-21

Co-ordinated Admissions Scheme for Salford Local Authority for the 
2020-21 academic year.

Applications for primary1 and secondary schools within  Salford Local Authority 
(except independent and special schools) for the normal admissions round shall be 
determined in accordance with the provisions set out in Part 1 and 2 of this scheme 
and processed in accordance with the timetables set out in Part 3.

1 Part One: The normal admissions round

1.1 Under its scheme of co-ordinated admissions, Salford Local Authority will be 
responsible for managing the admission of all pupils who are resident in 
Salford. This responsibility will cover admissions to Salford schools that have 
community, voluntary controlled, voluntary aided, foundation or academy 
status, and co-ordinated admissions to schools maintained by other local 
education authorities. (Independent schools are not included in the co-
ordinated scheme.)

1.2 Salford City Council will also co-ordinate applications for other authority 
applicants requesting places for nursery and reception class, as well as 
secondary school intake in Salford schools.

1.3 Salford Local Authority, as the admissions authority for community and 
voluntary controlled schools in Salford, will be responsible for allocating places 
at these schools in accordance with the Local Authority’s admissions 
oversubscription criteria.

1.4 For voluntary aided schools and academies, the governing body of each school 
is the admissions authority.  As such it is the governing body of each school 
that determines who will be allocated a place at that school in accordance with 
the criteria laid down in its schools admissions policy.

1.5 For schools maintained by neighbouring local authorities, the relevant 
admission authority will be responsible for determining who is allocated a place.

1.6 Nursery class children are able to start in the September after their third 
birthday.  Reception class children are able to start in the September after their 
fourth birthday.  Secondary school pupils start in the September after their 
eleventh birthday. 

1.7 The local authority manages nursery admissions for the majority of schools 
under a service level agreement.  Those schools that do not partake in the 
agreement and therefore manage their own nursery admissions will be listed in 
the information booklet and on the Salford City Council website.  Parents 
wishing to apply for a place at one of these schools will be advised that they will 
need to apply directly to the school concerned.

1.8 Schools that manage their own nursery admissions will operate in the same 
timescales as listed within this scheme so as to limit confusion for parents.

1 ‘Primary’ refers to both nursery and reception intakes unless otherwise stated.

Page 24



1.9 Parents wishing to apply for a school nursery in another local authority will need 
to contact that local authority direct.  Admissions to nursery schools are not co-
ordinated.

Application process

1.10 In order to determine the pupils resident in Salford, the Local Authority will ask 
all neighbouring authorities and independent schools in the area for details of 
eligible pupils who attend their schools and who reside in Salford.  This will be 
carried out at the end of the Summer Term 2019.

1.11 Parents/carers will be asked to make their application online on Salford City 
Council’s website. 

1.12 Full information on admissions processes and admission policies for all Salford 
schools will be made available on Salford City Council’s website. 

1.13 The online application form will invite all parents/carers resident in the Local 
Authority to name a minimum of 3 preferred schools. 

1.14 Parents/carers should name and prioritise all schools which they wish their 
child to be considered for, including voluntary aided schools, academies, 
independent schools and/or any outside the Salford area. 

1.15 Parents/carers will be asked to submit the online application form by 15 
January 2020.

1.16 Receipt of all online applications will be acknowledged by email.

1.17 Parents/carers will be advised that if they have difficulty applying online they 
can contact the school admissions team by email or telephone during office 
hours for further assistance.

1.18 All preferences are treated as equal initially and sent out as equal to other 
admission authorities (i.e. other local education authorities, aided schools, 
foundation schools or academies).  If more than one school place can 
potentially be offered, the single offer is for the school listed highest. 

1.19 Parents/carers who want to express a preference for a voluntary aided school, 
foundation school, an academy, a UTC or a school maintained by another 
authority will be advised in the online information to check the admission policy 
for the appropriate school or the relevant local authority.

1.20 Parents/carers who want to express a preference for an independent school will 
be advised in the information online to contact the school concerned directly.

1.21 Some voluntary aided schools in Salford, foundation schools or academies may 
require further information to that collected on the online application, for 
example they may require a copy of a baptism certificate.  Parents/carers 
should check with the relevant schools for their requirements. Any information 
provided will only be used in the event of the school being oversubscribed. 

1.22 Applications must be made by a person with parental responsibility for the child.  
If applicants do not have parental responsibility the person completing the form 
should provide reasons why they are applying rather than a person with 
parental responsibility.  Any evidence to support the case should accompany 

Page 25



the application.  The reasons will be considered by the council and if deemed 
acceptable, the application will be processed accordingly.  If not deemed 
acceptable, the applicant will be asked to gain the authority  of a person with 
parental responsibility for the child, and provide evidence of this to the local 
authority

Primary (nursery and reception class)

1.23 All parents/carers who have registered with the Local Authority will receive 
information on how to apply for a reception school place.

1.24 Parents/carers who have a nursery place at a Salford Local Authority school 
should be aware that they will not automatically get a place in the reception 
class at that school. All available places will be offered as per the published 
admission arrangements and oversubscription criteria.

1.25 The closing date for all primary applications is Wednesday 15 January 2020.

1.26 Online forms may be submitted until 11:59pm on Wednesday 15 January 2020. 

1.27 Preferences can be changed up until the closing date via the online form.  
Preferences can only be changed after the closing date in exceptional 
circumstances, and only if the admission authority of the school concerned are 
in agreement. Parents/carers should explain the circumstances in writing (via 
email or via the ‘Contact us online’ form on the Salford City Council website) 
when informing the LA of their change of preference.  It may not be possible to 
make changes to preferences for other LA schools or Salford other admission 
authority schools after 31 January 2020.  This is the date when information is 
exchanged with other admission authorities. Parents should check the 
admission policy of the school concerned.

Secondary intakes

1.28 At the beginning of the Autumn Term 2019 information will be made available to 
all parents/carers of Year 6 pupils resident in Salford. 

1.29 The closing date for all secondary applications is Thursday 31 October 2019.

1.30 Online application forms may be submitted until 11:59pm on the closing date of 
Thursday 31 October 2019.

1.31 Preferences can be changed up until the closing date via the online form.  
Preferences can only be changed after the closing date in exceptional 
circumstances and only if the admission authority of the school concerned are 
in agreement. Parents/carers should explain the circumstances in writing (via 
email or via the ‘Contact us online’ form on the Salford City Council website) 
when informing the LA of their change of preference.  It may not be possible to 
make changes to preferences for other LA schools or Salford other admission 
authority schools after 18 November 2019.  This is the date when information in 
exchanged with other admission authorities.  Parents should check with the 
admission authority of the school concerned.

Shared parental responsibility

1.32 Where two adults have shared responsibility for a child they should agree 
before submitting an application form which school(s) to name as their 
preference(s). In cases of dispute, or when two application forms are submitted, 

Page 26



the LA will process the application received from the adult with whom the child 
is living the majority of the school week. The address shown on the child benefit 
notification letter will be taken as evidence of residency. If this is not available 
then the address showing on the child’s NHS medical card can be used as 
evidence of residency. 

Processing Applications – Primary

1.33 By 31 January 2020 Salford Local Authority will send other local authorities 
details of parents/carers who have expressed a preference for a reception 
place in a maintained primary school in their area. This will include any 
supporting information submitted by the parents. Salford local authority will also 
receive such information from other local authorities.

1.34 By 31 January 2020 voluntary aided, foundation schools and academies will be 
sent details of parents/carers who have expressed a preference for a primary 
school place in their school. This will include any supporting information 
submitted by parents.

1.35 By 2 March 2020 Salford voluntary aided, foundation schools and academies 
will inform the Local Authority of the priority given to each applicant in 
accordance with the oversubscription criteria.  Where a school has a service 
level agreement (SLA) with the local authority this process will be performed by 
the local authority and sent to the governing body of the school to receive 
approval by this date.  The local authority, as the admission authority, will 
determine the priority order of applicants to community and voluntary controlled 
school.

1.36 By 16 March 2020 Salford Local Authority will inform other local authorities of 
reception offers to be made to pupils resident within their boundaries and 
request details of offers they will be making to Salford residents. This 
information will continue to be exchanged until 27 March 2020.

Processing Applications – Secondary

1.37 By 18 November 2019 Salford Local Authority will send other local authorities 
details of parents/carers who have expressed a preference for a maintained 
school in their area.  Salford local authority will also receive such information 
from other local authorities.

1.38 By 18 November 2019 voluntary aided schools and academies will be sent 
details of parents/carers who have expressed a preference for their school.  
This will include any supporting information submitted by parents.

1.39 By 16 December 2019 Salford voluntary aided, foundation schools and 
academies will inform the Local Authority of the priority order of applicants in 
accordance with their oversubscription criteria.  Where a school has a SLA with 
the local authority this process will be performed by the local authority and sent 
to the governing body of the school to receive approval by this date.  The local 
authority, as the admission authority, will determine the priority order of 
applicants to community and voluntary controlled school.

1.40 By 13 January 2020 Salford Local Authority will inform other local authorities of 
offers to be made to pupils resident within their boundaries and request details 
of offers they will be making to Salford residents.

Page 27



1.41 By 31 January 2020 Salford Local Authority will notify other local authorities, 
voluntary aided schools and academies of any further places they are able to 
offer.  Salford will have been notified by other local authorities of any further 
places which they can offer in response to any preference expressed by one of 
our residents.

Determining offers – primary and secondary

1.42 When applications for all schools have been ranked, where necessary, the 
Local Authority will co-ordinate the offer of a single place for each child. It is 
possible that some children will have more than one potential place. If this is 
the case, the place that has highest priority on the application form will be 
offered.

1.43 School places which become available following the first round of co-ordination 
will be offered to the child ranked next in the oversubscription criteria, unless 
the child already has a potential offer with higher priority on the application 
form.

1.44 Offers will be coordinated with neighbouring local authorities in the same way.

1.45 For primary and secondary intakes if a child living in Salford cannot be offered 
a place at any of their parents' preferences of school, where possible they will 
be offered a place at the nearest Salford school within a reasonable distance of 
their home address with a vacancy.  This will be the nearest community, 
voluntary controlled, voluntary aided, foundation school or academy. Where 
places are available in voluntary aided faith schools these will first be allocated 
to children of the faith.

1.46 For primary aged children, a reasonable distance is defined as within 2 miles 
walking distance.  For secondary aged children, a reasonable distance is 
defined as within 3 miles walking distance.

1.47 Where a nursery aged child living in Salford cannot be offered a place at any of 
their parents’ preferences of schools, and it is not possible to offer a place at a 
school within a reasonable distance of their home address, they will be referred 
directly to the Starting Life Well service for advice on alternative nursery 
providers within Salford where they may be able to take the free hours 
entitlement.

1.48 School place offers will be finalised 2 weeks before the allocation date (finalised 
31 March for primary applications, 14 February for secondary applications).  
This is to confirm place offers with other admission authorities and to give 
sufficient time to produce offer information.  At this stage the offers will be 
finalised and no further changes will be made to offers even if information is 
received by an admission authority to show that there has been a change in 
circumstances to the child’s application.  Any such changes received after that 
date will only be dealt with after the allocation date.

Notifying parents/carers of decisions

1.49 Salford Local Authority will inform every Salford applicant for reception and 
secondary places of their allocated place via the online application system.  
Parents/carers will need to log into the online system on the offer day to view 
their child’s allocated school place. This will also include offers of places that 
can be made to schools maintained by neighbouring local authorities. 

Page 28



1.50 Salford Local Authority will inform every nursery applicant of their allocated 
place at a Salford school. Parents/carers will need to log into the online system 
on the offer day to view their child’s allocated school place.

1.51 The offer information will include:

 the name of the school at which a place has been offered;

 the reasons why the child has not been offered a place at the other 
schools which were given as a preference (if relevant);

 information about their statutory right of appeal against the decision to 
refuse a place at any school given as a higher preference;

 confirmation that in the re-allocation process, a child will be considered 
for any places that might become available in schools they ranked higher 
than the school they have been offered (i.e. the child’s name will be 
placed on a waiting list and places will be reallocated  to children on the 
waiting list according to the oversubscription criteria for the school 
concerned), and the date at which the waiting list will cease and what to 
do if they wish to be considered for any vacancies beyond that point. 
Parents refused places at other admission authority or other LA schools 
will be advised to contact that admission authority for information on their 
waiting list process as not all authorities automatically place children on 
a waiting list.

1.52 Schools in Salford will have access to the lists of pupils who have been 
allocated places at least one day before allocation day.  Schools will not 
communicate any offers of places to parents until the allocation day.

1.53 Parents will have two weeks to accept the place offered.  Parents will be able to 
respond online to accept a school place.  

1.54 All parents will be asked to provide proof of address and a copy of their child’s 
short birth certificate (primary only) to their child’s allocated school at the time 
of acceptance of a place.  Parents will be informed of the types of proof of 
address that are required and will be acceptable.  Where parents are unable to 
provide sufficient information, the local authority will make further investigations 
and, where necessary, may withdraw the offered school place if the offer was 
made on the basis of fraudulent or intentionally misleading information.  
Parents will be informed in writing of the local authority’s decision where an 
investigation takes place.

Primary allocation date

1.55 The allocation date for primary allocations is Thursday 16 April 2020.

1.56 For reception class, the allocation information will offer full-time places 
commencing September 2019.  However, parents can opt for their child to 
attend on a part-time basis and/or defer their child’s entry to school until they 
reach compulsory school age (term after the fifth birthday).  Deferral or part-
time attendance should be arranged directly with the headteacher of the 
allocated school in writing. Further information can be found at 
www.salford.gov.uk/outofage

Page 29



1.57 The majority of nursery places are offered on a full time basis.  Those children 
being offered a part time place will be informed by the school in writing in a 
letter as to whether the place offered is a morning or afternoon session. 

Secondary allocation date

1.58 The allocation date for secondary is Monday 2 March 2020.

Right of Appeal

1.59 Where parental preference cannot be met the parent/carer will be advised of 
their right of appeal and supplied with details of the appeals procedure. There is 
no right of appeal for nursery places. 

1.60 If another admission authority maintains the preferred school and that authority 
is unable to offer a place at the parent/carers preferred school, Salford Local 
Authority, on behalf of the other admission authority, will inform the parent/carer 
in writing of this decision. The parent/carer will also be advised of their right of 
appeal and supplied with details of the appeals procedure. 

1.61 All appeals for on-time applications must be heard within 40 school days of the 
appeal being lodged.   

1.62 Appeals for late applications should be heard within 40 school days from the 
deadline for lodging appeals where possible, or within 30 school days of the 
appeal being lodged.

1.63 An appeals timetable is published on the Council’s website by 28 February.  
This indicates when parents can expect their appeal to be heard.

Late applications

1.64 For applications received after the closing date and before the offer date of 
places:

 the application will be classed as late;
 it will only be considered after applications received on time; 
 applications for other admission authority schools will be passed on 

noting they were received late.  It is up to that admission authority to 
decide how they wish to proceed with the application;

 the offer of a place will be decided as described in section 1.42 to 1.48;
 where possible applicants will be notified on the usual offer date.

1.65 For applications received after the offer date but before the start of the school 
year:

 applications will be considered as they are received; and
 the offer of a place will be decided as described in section 1.42 to 1.48
 applicants will be notified as soon as possible.

1.66 The LA will only process applications received after the closing date as on time 
applications if there is a good reason for late submission. Reasons for late 
submission should be submitted to the local authority in writing as part of the 
application. The local authority (or the relevant admission authority) will 
consider these reasons and where deemed acceptable will process the 

Page 30



application as though it were received on time.  If not deemed acceptable the 
local authority will continue to process the application as a late application.  A 
valid late application will include situations where children move into Salford 
after the closing date but before offers of places are made. Parents should note 
that it may not be possible to accept late applications as on time after 19 
November 2018 (for secondary applicants) and 1 February 2019 (for primary 
applicants).  This is the date when application information is exchanged with 
other admissions authorities.

1.67 Where parents of Salford children fail to submit a form indicating any 
preference, a place will be allocated at the nearest school to the home address 
which has a place.  Where places are available at voluntary aided faith schools, 
these will first be allocated to children of the faith.

Waiting lists

1.68 Salford Local Authority will operate a waiting list for Salford community and 
voluntary controlled schools which are oversubscribed until 31 December 2019 
for applicants whose initial request for nursery, reception and secondary places 
have been unsuccessful. Should any places become available they will be 
allocated in accordance with Salford Local Authority’s published admission 
criteria. 

1.69 Children who come under the Fair Access Protocol will take precedence over 
those on the waiting list. 

1.70 Salford Local Authority will also liaise with the voluntary aided schools, 
foundation schools and academies which are oversubscribed who will operate 
their own waiting lists until 31 December 2020 for applicants whose initial 
request has been unsuccessful. Should any places become available the Local 
Authority will contact the school concerned and the place will be allocated in 
accordance with the published admission criteria for that school. 

1.71 Length of time on the waiting list will not be seen as a relevant factor.

Applications outside the normal year of entry

1.72 Parents/carers may occasionally apply for their child to be admitted outside 
their normal age group (i.e. to the year above if the child is gifted or talented or 
to a lower year if the child has special educational needs or has experienced 
problems or is a summer born child starting school for the first time).

1.73 The Local Authority, as admission authority for community and voluntary 
controlled schools, or the governing body, as admissions authority for voluntary 
aided, foundation schools, academies and the UTC, will consider these 
applications individually.

1.74 The decision will be taken by the admission authority after discussion with the 
Head teacher and other relevant professionals, such as an Educational 
Psychologist.  The decision will consider the circumstances of each case and 
will be made in the best interests of the child concerned, in accordance with the 
requirements of the School Admissions Code (2014).

1.75 Full details of the process for such applications are available in the local 
authority’s guidance on educating children outside of chronological age group 
available at www.salford.gov.uk/outofagePage 31



Children from Overseas

1.76 Children who hold a full British Citizen passport or children whose passport has 
been endorsed to show they have the right of abode in the country are entitled 
to apply for a place at a maintained school. The passport or visa should be 
made available for inspection before an offer of a school place can be made. 
Asylum Seekers should make available evidence of their right of abode through 
production of their Application Registration Card (ARC).

1.77 Other children from overseas do not generally have automatic right of entry to 
the UK. An application for a school place will not therefore be accepted until 
they are resident in the UK. Proof of residency such as an endorsed passport 
or entry visa will be required with the application. Exceptions to this would be 
instances where the children are of parents returning from foreign postings, 
such as UK service personnel and other crown servants (including diplomats) 
who have been posted abroad on a fixed term contract and who are returning 
to live within the UK. Proof of the future UK residency (or a service unit’s postal 
address) will be required if application is made to an oversubscribed school.

Children from Service families

1.78 Applications for children of service personnel with a confirmed posting or crown 
servants returning from overseas will be considered in advance of the family 
moving into the area if necessary. Where possible, an application must be 
included in the normal admission round.

1.79 An official letter, such as a posting note or letter of support from the 
commanding officer should be sent to the local authority as soon as possible. 
This should include the relocation date and Unit postal address or quartering 
area address (the address of the closest house in the nearest ‘quartering 
area’).

1.80 Until a fixed address is available, the Unit postal address or quartering area 
address will be used and a school place allocated accordingly.

2 Part 2: In-year Admissions

1.1 Following the publication of the School Admissions Code (2012), the 
requirement to co-ordinate in-year admissions was removed from Local 
Authorities. 

1.2 Following the admissions consultation in 2013, it was decided that the local 
authority would continue to process in-year applications for schools within its 
border so as to retain control over the movement of pupils and safeguard the 
children within its care. 

1.3 Salford residents wishing to apply for an in-year move to a school in another 
local authority should contact that local authority or the school concerned 
directly. 

1.4 Any resident wishing to apply for an in-year move to any Salford school should 
apply to Salford Local Authority directly using the online application form on the 
Salford City Council website.

Page 32



1.5 The local authority will process in-year applications in line with the policies and 
processes, but not timescales, defined earlier in Part 1 of this scheme.  The 
local authority will aim to process all in-year applications within 20 school days. 
No waiting lists will be held for in-year admissions. Parents will need to re-apply 
for a place if it is their continued wish for their child to be educated at their 
preferred school.

1.6 Some applications that prove complex may take longer than the 20 days to 
process as necessary information is collated.  

1.7 Where a child is unplaced their application will be referred to the In-Year Fair 
Access process.

1.8 Where a child cannot be offered a place at a preferred school they will be given 
the right of appeal.  Only one appeal per academic year can be heard unless 
there has been a significant change in circumstances.

1.9 Where a child cannot be offered a place in a preferred school and is unplaced 
the local authority will endeavour to offer a place at the next nearest school with 
a vacancy.  

1.10 The offer of a place in-year will only be held for 4 weeks.  If the child has not 
started, or is unable to start, at the school within this time then the place will be 
relinquished and a new application will need to be made.

In Year Fair Access Protocol

1.11 The protocol will be initiated for children within categories listed in the policy 
where a school place cannot be found or where a school refers a case for 
consideration under the protocol. A full copy of the protocol can be found on the 
local authority’s website.

1.12 The operation of the Fair Access Protocol is outside the arrangements of co-
ordination and is triggered when a parent of an eligible child has not secured a 
school place under the in-year admission arrangements.

1.13 Fair Access Protocols exist to ensure that unplaced children outside the normal 
admissions round, especially the most vulnerable, are offered a suitable school 
as quickly as possible and to ensure that all schools in an area admit their fair 
share of children with challenging behaviour.

1.14 In the event of a governing body refusing to admit a pupil with challenging 
behaviour outside the normal admissions round, even though places are 
available, a referral will be made to the Local Authority for action under the Fair 
Access Protocol.  

1.15 This provision will not apply to a looked after child, a previously looked after 
child or a child with an Education Health and Care Plan naming the school in 
question, as these children must be admitted.

1.16 All admission authorities must participate in the Fair Access Protocol in order to 
ensure that unplaced children are allocated a school place quickly. There is no 
duty for local authorities or admission authorities to comply with parental 
preference when allocating places through the Fair Access Protocol. Page 33



1.17 In the vast majority of cases children and young people requiring a school place 
will continue to be admitted in accordance with the usual admission procedures 
rather than through this protocol.

Page 34



Part Three: Timetable for co-ordinated admissions to Salford Local Authority 
maintained primary schools for admission in the academic year 2018-2019

Closing date for applications 15 January 2020
Salford Local Authority sends applications to 
other Local Authorities

31 January 2020

Salford Local Authority sends applications to 
voluntary aided schools, foundation schools 
and academies

31 January 2020

LA receives responses from aided schools 1 March 2020
Salford Local Authority will inform other Local 
Authorities of offers to be made to pupils 
resident within their boundaries and request 
details of offers they will be making to Salford 
residents.

31 March 2020

Offer letter sent to parents / carers 16 April 2020
Parents/carers to notify schools of acceptance 
of offer

 1 May 2020

Deadline for lodging an appeal 15 May 2020
Appeals for on-time applications must be heard within 40 school days of the deadline 
for appeals being lodged.

Part Four: Timetable for co-ordinated admissions for Salford Local Authority 
maintained secondary schools and year 10 intakes for admission in the 
academic year 2018-2019

Distribution of information to parents / carers of 
year 6 pupils

Beginning of Autumn Term 2019

Closing date for preference forms for year 7 
applications

31 October 2019

Local authority sends applications for schools in 
other Local Authorities to those Local 
Authorities

18 November 2019

Local authority sends applications to voluntary 
aided, foundation schools and academies

18 November 2019

Responses from voluntary aided schools and 
academies

16 December 2019

Local authority to notify other local authorities of 
1st cycle places to be offered

13 January 2020

Home local authority sorts results of 1st cycle 
and sends results to other local authorities

20 January 2020

Local authority sorts results and notifies other 
local authorities of 2nd cycle offers

27 January 2020

Home local authority sorts results of 2nd cycle 31 January 2020
Schools informed by own local authority of final 
results. Offers to parents/carers by local 
authority

 2 March 2020

Parents/carers to notify local authority of 
acceptance of offer

16 March 2020

Deadline for lodging appeals 30 March 2020
Appeals
Appeals for on-time applications must be heard within 40 school days of the deadline 
for appeals being lodged.

Page 35



Appendix 4: details of school admission authorities
(These lists may be subject to change as schools convert to become academies)

The local authority is the admission authority for the following schools:

Beech Street Primary School
Boothstown Methodist Primary School
Brentnall Primary School
Bridgewater Primary School
Cadishead Primary School
Clarendon Road Primary School
Clifton Primary School
The Deans Primary School
Ellenbrook Primary School
Fiddlers Lane Primary School
The Friars Primary School
Grosvenor Road Primary School
Hilton Lane Primary School
Irlam Primary School
Irlam Endowed Primary School
James Brindley Primary School
Lark Hill Primary School
Lewis Street Primary School
Light Oaks Infant Primary School
Light Oaks Junior Primary School
Lower Kersal Primary School
Mesne Lea Primary School
Monton Green Primary School
Moorfield Primary School
Moorside Primary School
Mossfield Primary School
North Walkden Primary School
Peel Hall Primary School
Primrose Hill Primary School
River View Primary School
St Andrews CE Primary School, Eccles
St Andrews (Boothstown) CE Primary School
St Andrews Methodist Primary School
St Georges CE Primary School
St Johns CE Primary School
St Lukes CE Primary School
St Marys CE Primary School
St Pauls CE Primary School (Kersal)
St Pauls CE Primary School (Heathside Grove)
St Pauls Peel CE Primary School
Summerville Primary School
Wardley CE Primary School
Westwood Park Primary School
Wharton Primary School
Willow Tree Primary School

Harrop Fold High School

Page 36



The governing body or academy trust is the admission authority for the following 
voluntary aided schools and academies:

Barton Moss Primary School
Broadoak Primary School
Broughton Jewish Cassell Fox Primary School
Christ Church CE Primary School
Christ the King RC Primary School
Dukesgate Academy
Godfrey Ermen Memorial CE Primary School
Holy Cross and All Saints RC Primary School
Holy Family RC Primary School
Marlborough Road Academy
St Augustine’s CE Primary School
St Boniface RC Primary School
St Charles RC Primary School
St Edmunds RC Primary School
St Gilberts RC Primary School
St Josephs RC Primary School, Ordsall
St Joseph the Worker RC Primary School
St Lukes RC Primary School
St Marks CE Primary School
St Marks RC Primary School
St Marys RC Primary School, Eccles
St Marys RC Primary School, Swinton
St Pauls CE Primary School, Crompton Street
St Pauls CE Primary School, Cross Lane
St Peters CE Primary School
The Cathedral School of St Peter and St John RC
St Philips CE Primary School
St Philips RC Primary School
St Sebastian’s RC Primary School
St Teresa’s RC Primary School
St Thomas of Canterbury RC Primary School

All Hallows RC High School
Beis Yaakov Jewish High School for girls 
Buile Hill High School
Co-op Academy Swinton
Co-op Academy Walkden
Ellesmere Park High School 
Irlam and Cadishead College
Moorside High School
Oasis Academy:MediaCityUK
Salford City Academy
St Ambrose Barlow RC High School
St Patricks RC High School
UTC@MediaCityUK

Page 37



Appendix 5 – Community Impact Assessment Screening

Community Impact Assessment (CIA) - Initial Screening
Service/ Programme Area: Children’s Services/School Admissions
Date of assessment: 3/1/19
Lead CIA Officer: Helen Nicolle

The initial screening is a quick and easy process. It should:
 Identify if the proposal requires a CIA
 Provide justification for why a CIA is not going to be completed

The purpose of community impact assessment is to have “due regard” to the equality 
impact of proposals on protected groups, identifying if this impact is disproportionate 
and how it will be reduced, eliminated or mitigated. Community impact assessment, 
together with other sources of evidence, should inform decision-making. 

You must consider the following protected groups and indicate overleaf if a full 
community impact assessment is required:

 Age
 Disability 
 Gender
 Gender reassignment
 Marriage and Civil Partnership
 Pregnancy and maternity
 Race
 Religion and belief
 Sexual orientation

You may also want to consider other groups, including; people on a low income, 
carers, ex-offenders refugees and people seeking asylum, gypsies and travellers, 
where appropriate.
If you are unsure about any areas, you should undertake more research before you 
decide whether or not a full CIA is required, but this must be done BEFORE a 
decision is made. You should return the screening form as soon as possible 
indicating that you are undertaking more research. 
The findings of the initial screening MUST be included within the report for decision 
and this document attached as evidence of your consideration of potential impact on 
communities.

Page 38

http://www.equalityhumanrights.com/private-and-public-sector-guidance/guidance-all/protected-characteristics


 
1. Title(s) of proposal(s) Is a CIA 

required? 
Yes or No

Give Children adopted from outside of England priority for 
admission to schools

No

2. Where you have identified that a CIA is NOT required,  please detail below how 
you arrived at this decision

It is currently a statutory requirement that children adopted within England, or on special 
guardianship or child arrangement orders should be given priority for admission to schools.  
In August 2018, the local authority received a letter from the Department for Education 
stating that as soon as possible under the legislative calendar they intended to legislate that 
adopted children from outside of England (including Wales, Scotland and Northern Ireland 
as well as overseas adoptions) should be given top priority for admission to schools along 
with all other adopted and previously looked after children from within England.  The local 
authority was strongly advised to consider the inclusion of an admission criterion for these 
children as soon as possible in advance of the legislation being made.

No particular protected group will be affected by this decision more than any other.  There 
will be a positive impact for any adopted children with protected characteristics.

School admission policies do not discriminate on the basis of most protected 
characteristics. There is already priority for admission given to children with a disability who 
have an Education, Health and Care Plan.

In conclusion, there would be no adverse impact on any protected groups.

3. Once form is completed, please sign and date below

Name Signature Date
Helen Nicolle 3/1/19

All initial screenings and CIAs are reported to Corporate Management Team. Please 
forward your completed form to Rachel Todd (rachel.todd@salford.gov.uk) in Strategy 
and Change as soon as possible. It will then be confirmed (with Legal Services) that 
either a full CIA or no further actions are required. 

Page 39

mailto:rachel.todd@salford.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Adoption of the Greenspace Strategy Supplementary Planning Document (30 minutes)
	5 Admissions Consultation - Determination of Arrangements (30 minutes)

